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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of Quest Properties India Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Quest Properties India Limited
(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31t March 2024, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS")
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2024, and of its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
("Other Information”)

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises the information included in the Board of Director’s report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those-
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315t March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A", Our report expresses an
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g)

h)

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the note 46(b)(g) to the financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and
has not proposed final dividend for the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software(s). Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
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applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

Sanjiv Vasant sy s s
Pilgaonkar et OIS T 151708 +RETE

Sanjiv Pilgaonkar
(Partner)
(Membership No0.039826)
UDIN: 24039826BKCOEL9427
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Quest Properties India Limited (the “Company”) as at March 31, 2024 in conjunction with
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on “the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting

Page 6 of 12



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria
for internal financial contro! with reference to financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

Sanjiv Vasant st s

Date: 2074.06.17

Pilgaonkar 15:37:37 40535

Sanjiv Pilgaonkar
(Partner)
(Membership N0.039826)
UDIN: 24039826BKCOEL9427
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

a.

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment, capital-work-in Progress, investment properties and right-
of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets with unamortised carrying value.

Some of the property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress,
investment properties and right-of-use assets were physically verified during
the year by the Management in accordance with a program of verification,
which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the property, plant
and equipment, capital work-in-progress, investment properties and right-of-
use assets at reasonable intervals having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its activities. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

With respect to immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements
included in property, plant and equipment and investment property, according
to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed and development
agreement provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of such immovable
properties held as investment property and development agreement in respect
of immovable properties of self-constructed building on land held with the
rights of development and commercial usage, are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date. Immovable properties of self-
constructed building whose equitable assignment on all rights, title, permits,
approvals, clearances under development agreement have been pledged as
security for loans are held in the name of the Company, based on the
confirmations directly received by us from the lenders.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
(including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024, for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, (as amended in 2016), and rules
made thereunder.

Having regard to the nature of inventory, the physical verification by way of
verification of title deeds, site visits by the Management and certification of
extent of work completion by competent persons, are at reasonable intervals.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is
appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its
operations and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories
when compared with books of account.
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vi.

vii.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate,
at points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the statements comprising quarterly
financial information filed by the Company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the
Company.

The Company has made investments in, provided guarantees during the year
details of which are given below:

Investments | Guarantees
(Z lakh) (¥ lakh)
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided
during the year
- Subsidiaries 66.40
Joint Ventures 2,289.46
Others 0.42 5,000.00
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date in respect of above cases”
- Subsidiaries 2,346.21
- Joint Ventures 12,576.79
- Others* 953.19 28,375.00

*The amount does not include deemed investments of ¥40.53 lakh
on account of guarantee given to ICICI Bank on behalf on Guiltfree
Industries Limited.

The Company has not provided any loans or advances in nature of loans or
provided security to any other entity during the year.

The investments made, guarantees provided, and the terms and conditions of
the grant of all the above-mentioned guarantees provided, during the year
are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The Company has not granted loans or provided advances in the nature of
loan. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(c), (d), (e) and (f} is not applicable

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, in respect of making investments and guarantees given.
The Company has not granted any loans as that are covered under the
provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting on
compliance of Section 185 is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed to
be deposit. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the
Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it
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viii.

Xi.

with the appropriate authorities. We have been informed that the provisions
of the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 are not applicable to the
Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services
tax, Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not
been deposited on account of disputes as on March 31, 2024.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that was
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during
the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
unutilized term loans at the beginning of the year. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the year. Hence, reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally). Hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

To the best of our information, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, information and explanations given to us no
report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to
the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.
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Xii.

xiii,

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Xvii,

Xviii.

XiX.

XX.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the reports of the internal auditor issued to the Company
during the year and covering the period up to 31st March, 2024 for the
business process “order to cash” and period up to 31st December, 2023, for
business processes “procure to pay”, “manpower” and “GST", in determining
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with any of its directors or directors of its holding company,
subsidiary company, or persons connected with such directors. Hence,
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b)
and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

As represented to us by the management of the Company, the Group has more
than one CIC as part of the Group. There are 4 CIC forming part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered
by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act
or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section
135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) of the Order
is not applicable for the year.
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In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount, to a Special account before the
date of this report and within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial
year in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

Sanjiv Vasant s wws v
Pilgaonkar . @

Sanjiv Pilgaonkar
(Partner)
(Membership No0.039826)
UDIN: 24039826BKCOEL9427
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2024
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Quest Properties India Limited

Registered Office: CESC House, Chowringhee Square, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70101WB2006PLC108175
Telephone: +91 33 2225 6040
Email: cescproperties@rpsg.in

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

= I o T in lakhs
i As at As at
Particulars Note no. | . rch 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
ASSETS - o B
Non-current assets
a. Property, plant and equipment 2 31,844.16 32,846.50
b. Capital work-in-progress 2 239.12 84.30
¢. Right-of-use assets 2 10,371.61 10,827.71
d. Investment property 3 5,126.30 5,217.11
e. Intangible assets 4 5.45 5.52
f. Financial assets
i. Investments 5 15.916.72 13.716.66
ii. Loans 6 4,11 4.95
iii. Other financial assets % 300.91 42.29
g. Income tax assets (net) 8 225.14 1,885.95
h. Other non-current assets 9 767.42 212.05
Total non-current assets SN EL R 64,800.94 |  64,843.04
|
Current assets
a. Inventories 10 1,897.63 1,914.61
b. Financlal assets
|, Trade recelvables 1t 804.80 1,031.35
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 12 2,894.07 479.72
i, Loans 13 3.30 3.30
lv. Other financial assets 14 397.06 464.93
¢, Other current assets 15 1,212.59 1,148.60
Totel currentassets i 7,209.45 5,042.51
Total assets 72,010.39 69,885.55
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equlity
a. Equity share capital 16 26,252.00 26,252.00
b. Other equity 17 13,589.89 8,259.07
Total equity ~39,841.89 34,511,07
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabllities
a. Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 18 - 308.37
la, Lease Liabilities 19(a) 18,063.41 17,760.60
ii. Other financlal llabllities 19(b) 1,447.26 2,023.36
b. Provislons 20 237.19 203.64
c. Deferred tax liability (net) 34 3,326.37 3,148.48
d. Other non-current liabllities 21 141.91 211.17
Total non-current llabilities 23,216.11_ 23,655.62
Current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 22 - 3,458.12
la. Lease Liabilities 22(a) 21.24 1B.20
Il. Trade payables 23
(A) total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19.96 26.73
(B) total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 5,030.32 5,759,55
ili, Other financial Nlabllities 24 3,317.49 1,910.84
b. Other current liabliitles 25 549.14 543.81
c. Provislons 26 14.21 1.61
Total current liabllitles T 8,952.36 11,718.86
Total liabilities 32,168.50 35,374.48
Total equity and liabilities 72,010.39 69,885.55
Material accounting policies . 1(b)

The accompanylng notes from 1 - 50 are an integral part of this financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Quest Properties India Limited

Registered Office: CESC House, Chowringhee Square, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2006PLC108175

Telephone: +91 33 2225 6040

Email: cescproperties@rpsg.in

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

7 in lakhs
For the year For the year
Particulars Note no. | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
— 2024 2023
1  Revenue from operations 27 13,795.00 13,902.67
II  Other income 28 1,669.68 93.56
III Total income 15,464.68 13,996.23
IV Expenses
Cost of material consumed 29 (a) - 231.71
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade/ Traded Goods 29 (b) 30.24 -
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 29 () 18.28 313.40
Employee benefits expenses 30 1,259.52 1,152.04
Finance costs 31 2,121.25 2,292.72
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 32 1,658.96 1,659.15
Other expenses 33 3,369.59 3,251.53 |
Total expenses 8,457.84 8,900.55
V  Profit before tax 7,006.84 5,095.68
VI Tax expense
- Current tax 34 1,473.39 ~
- Deferred tax 34 184,12 1,261.57
Total tax expense 1,657.51 1,261.57
VII Profit for the year 5,349.33 3,834.11
VII1 Other comprehensive income
A Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss
(1) Remeasurements of post-employement beneflt plans 35 (6.02) 2,01
(Ii) Fair value (loss) / gain on investments deslgnated as at FVTOCI 35 (18.72) 156.76
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to the 35 6.23 (39.96)
statement of profit and loss
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income, net of taxes (18.51)| 118.81
IX Total comprehensive income for the year 5,330.82 3,952.92
X  Earning per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 36 2.04 1.46
Diluted (Rs.) 36 2.04 1.46
Materlal accounting palicies 1 (b)

The accompanying notes from 1 - 50 are an integral part of this financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Quest Properties India Limited

Registered Office: CESC House, Chowringhee Square, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70101WB2006PLC108175
Telephone: +91 33 2225 6040
Email: cescproperties@rpsg.in

Statement of Changes in equity as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

a. Equity share capital

T in lakhs
. As at ' As at
ParEicaias March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balance as at April 01, 2023 26,252.00 26,252.00
Changes In Equlty Share Capital due to prior period errors - .-
Restated balance as at April 01, 2023 26,252.00 26,252.00
Changes in equity share capital during the current year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 26,252.00 26,252.00

b. Other equity

For the year ended March 31, 2024 Z in lakhs
. Fair Value gain on
Particulars ::::;::g investment Total
through OCI
Balance as at April 01, 2023 8,202.97 56.10 8,259.07
Changes In accounting policy or prior period item - - -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2023 8,202.97 56.10 8,259.07
Profit for the year 5,349.33 - 5,349.33
Other comprehensive loss for the vear (net of taxes) (4.50) (14.01) (18.51)
Total comprehensive income for the yvear 5,344.83 (14.01) 5,330.82
Transfer to/(from) Retained Earning = = =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 13,547.80 42.09 13,589.89
For the year ended March 31, 2023 T in lakhs
. Fair Value gain on
Particulars :::'a‘;::: investment Total
through OCI

Balance as at April 01, 2022 4,306.15 - 4,306.15
Changes in accounting policy or prior period item - - L.
Restated balance as at April 01, 2022 4,306.15 - 4,306.15
Profit for the year 3,834.11 - 3,834.11
Other comprehensive income for the vear 1.51 117.30 118.81
Total comnrehensive income for the vear 3.835.62 117.30 3,952.92
Transfer to/(from) Retained Earnina 61.20 (61.20) -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 8.202.97 56.10 8,259.07

As per our report of even date attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 117366W/W-100018

i Digitally signed by
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May 17, 2024
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Quest Properties India Limited

Recaistered Office: CESC House, Chowrinaghee Saquare, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2006PLC108175
Telephone: +91 33 2225 6040

Email: cescproperties@rpsg.in

Statement of Cash Flow far the vear ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

% in lakhs_

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit before taxation

Adjustrment for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Liabllities written back

Interest income

Income from [nvestment In Alternate Investment Funds
Financial Guarantee income

Allowances for expected credit loss

Bad Debt

Finance costs

Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Adjustments for:

Decrease / Increase in trade receivables

Decrease in inventory

Increase in non current and current financtal assets
Increase In non current and current non-financial assets

Increase in provislons

Operating cash flow after working capital changes
Income taxes paid (net of refund)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds fram sale of property, plant & equipment

Interest income recelved
Investment in Subslidiaries and Joint Venture

Purchases af equity instruments designated at FVTOCI
Net cash used in investing actlvitles (B)

Cash flows from financing actlvitles
Repayment of long term borrowing

Interest Payment on Lease Llabilities and others
Pavment of Lease Liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Particulars

March 31, 2024

For the year ended

7,006.84 5,095.68
1,658.96 1,659.15
. (6.71)
(83.62) (18.28)
(1,187.83) .
- (24.72)
7.42 -
4.56 26.95
Loss on sale / disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 28,39 170.78
2,121.25 2,292.72
9,555.97 9,195.57
226.55 (294.43)
16.98 316.41
(181.71) (279.89)
(631,34) (587.25)
Increase in trade payables and other non current and current financial Habllities 804.56 559.75
Increase / (Decrease) in non-current and current non-financial liabllities 73.57 (373.12)
40.13 28.63_
9,904.71 8,565.67
187.42 | __ (589.75)
10.092.13 _ 7,975.92
0.56 2.93
Capltal expenditure on property plant & equipment, Investment property, intangible assets, (293.71) {290.21)
Capltal work in progress including capital advances and capital liabilities
83.02 18.28
Proceeds from sale of Investment in Alternate Investment Funds 1,352.42 -
(2,528.06) (4,509.34) |
Proceeds on disposal of equity Instruments designated at FVTOCI . 1,185.54 |
(0.42 -
(1,386.19} [ (3,592.80)
(3,770.29) (3,064.24)
(2,206.10) (522.44)
£315:200 _£17.36)
(6.291.59) (3,604.04)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (A+B+C) 2,414.35 779.08
479.72 (299.36)
2.A94.07 479.72
T in lakhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Balances with banks

b=

- In current accounts 688.13 475.15

- Bank deposits with original maturity of upto 3 months 2200.00 -

Cash on hand 5.94 4.57

TOTAL ) 2,894.07 479.72

Changes in Liability arlsing from Financing Activitles ¥ in lakhs
: Non Current Current

Rarticulars (Refer Note no. 18) |(Refer Note no. 22) fetal

April 1, 2023 308.37 3,458.12 3,76b.4Y

Cash Flow (308.41) (3,461.88) (3,770.29)

Amortlsation of Transactlon cost 0.04 3.76 3.80

March 31, 2024 0.00 0.00 0.00




Quest Propertles Indla Limited

Reaistered Office: CESC House. Chowrinahee Sauare, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70101WB2006PLC108175
Telephone: +91 33 2225 6040

Email: cescproperties@rpsg.in

Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Notes :

a) Cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as glven in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) on the cash flow statement,

b) Additions to the property,plant and equipment and Intangible assets Include movements of capital work In progress.
¢) The Company has provided financial guarantee which has been shown as deemed investment. This, being a non-cash transaction. has not been disclosed In the

Statement of Cash Flow.

As per our report of even date attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

FIrm Registration Number: 117366W/W-100018
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Partner
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Quest Properties India Limited

Registered Office: CESC House, Chowringhee Square, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2006PLC108175

Telephone: +91 33 2225 6040

Email: cescproperties@rpsg.in

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1A Corporate information

Quest Properties India Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiclled in India. The Company is engaged
in the business of development and operation of mall and other real estate properties.The company owns and operates Quest
Mall in Kolkata. The company is also involved in property development in the resldential sector.

1B Summary of material accounting policies

Basis of preparation

i) Statement of compliance

These financlal statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS")
notifled under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companles Act, 2013 and other provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 to the extent applicable.

ii) Basis of measurement
The financlal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values.
Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between
market particlpants at the measurement date.

iii) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
values of assets and llabillties that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are consldered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongolng basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate Is revised and future periods affected.

Slgnificant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabllities include useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, Intangible assets and Investments,
provision for employee beneflts and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencles.

1C.1 Property, plant and equlpment

i) Recognition and measurement R

a) Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreclation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any, The cost comprises of purchase cost, borrowing costs If capitalisation criteria are met and other directly
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for intended use. The cost also comprises of exchange
differences arising on translation /settlement of long term forelgn currency monetary items pertaining to acquisition of such
depreciable assets. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted In arriving at the purchase price. The resldual values, useful
life & method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

b) Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to Its carrying amount only if it
increases the future benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

c) Capltal work in progress is stated at cost, [including botrowing cost, where applicable and adjustment for exchange
difference] incurred during construction/Installation period relating to items or projects in progress.

d) Losses arlsing from the retirement of and galns or losses arising from disposal of praperty, plant and equipment which are
carrled at cost are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

ii) Depreciation

Depreciation on Items of property and equipment is provided on straight line method based on the useful life as prescribed
under Schedule I of the Companles Act, 2013. In case of property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed off
during the year, depreciation Is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of additlon / deletion. Leasehold land Is
amortized over the unexpired period of the lease.

The Company has used the foliowing useful life to provide depreciation on its tangible assets:

Bullding* - 10-60 years
Plant & Equilpment*:

-Solar Plant - 25 years

-Thermal Imager - 5 years

-Others -~ 10-15 vears
Furniture & Fixture - 10 vears
Vehicles ~ B years
Office Equipment - 5 vears
Computer - 3 years

* The Company has used useful life which is lower of the prescribed useful life as per Schedule II of Companles Act, 2013 or
tenure stated in development agreement.




Quest Properties India Limited

Registered Office: CESC House, Chowringhee Saquare, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2006PLC108175

Telephone: +91 33 2225 6040

Email: cescproperties@rpsg.in

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1C.2 Investment properties

1C.3

1C.5

1C.5.1

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capltal appreciation. Investment propertles are measured
initlally at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to Initial recognitlon, investment properties are measured in
accordance with Ind AS 16 requirements for cost model. An Investment property Is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property Is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic beneflts are expected from the disposal. Any
galin or loss arising thereon (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intanglble assets comprising of computer software expected to provide future economlc benefits are stated at cost of
acquisition/ implementation/ development less accumulated amortization.

Amortization
Cost of intangibles including related expenditures are amortised In three years on stralght line basis.

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrylng amount may not be recoverable. An Impairment loss Is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing Impalrment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately Identlfiable cash Inflows which are largely Independent of the cash Inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impalrment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impalrment
at the end of each reporting year.

Financial instruments
A financial Instrument |s a contract that glves rise to a financlal asset of one entlty and a financial liability or equity of another
entity.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial Instrument and of allocating Interest
income or expense over the relevant period. The effective Interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash recelpts
or payments through the expected life of the financlal instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial asset

1) Initial measurement

All financlal assets are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acqulsition of the
financlal asset (other than financial assets recorded at falr value through profit or lass) are included in the fair value of the
financial assets. Purchase or sales of financlal assets that require dellvery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are recognised on trade date. Financlals assets of the
Company include investments in equity shares of subslidiary, trade and other recelvables, loans and advances to employees
etc.

I} Classification and subseq tor ement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financlal assets of the Company are classified in the following categories:
1) financial assets measured at amortised cost and

2) financial assets measured at falr vaiue through profit and loss

The classification of financial assets depends on the objective of the business model. Management determines the
classlfication of its financial assets at Initial recognition.

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost:

A financlal instrument Is measured at amortised cost If both the following conditlons are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specifled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of princlpal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category Is the most relevant to the Company. After initisl measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
meastred at amortised cost using the effective Interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking Inte account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is Included
in finance income In the profit or loss. The losses arising from Impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applles to trade and other recelvables, bank deposits, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and
other advances.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income If these financlal assets are held within a
business whose objective Is achleved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset glve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of princlpal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an [rrevocable election to present In other comprehensive income
subsequent changes In the fair value of equity investments not held for trading.

Finaacial instruments measured at falr value through profit and loss

Fair value through profit and loss Is the residual category. Any financial instrument which does not meet the criteria for
categorizatlon as at amortized cost or falr value through other comprehensive income Is classified at FVTPL.

Financial instruments included within FVTPL category are measured initlally as well as at each reporting perlod at fair value
plus transaction costs. Falr value maovements are recorded in statement of profit and loss.
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1C.5.2 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

1C€.5.3

1C.5.4

1C.5.5

1C.5.6

1C.5.7

1C.5.8

1C.5.9

1C.5.10

Investments in subsldiarles and joint ventures are carried at cost/deemed cost applied on transition to Ind AS, less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indicatlon of Impalrment exists, the carrying amount of investment is
assessed and an impairment provision is recognised, If required immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such
Investments, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss

Trade receivables

The company classifies the right to conslderatlan in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue.

A recelvable Is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time, Revenue for time and material contracts
are recognized as related service are performed.

Revenue recognition for fixed price development contracts Is based on percentage of completion method. Invoicing to the
clients Is based on milestones as defined In the contract. This would result in the timing of revenue recagnition being different
from the timing of bllling the custemers.Unbilled revenue for fixed price development contracts is classifled as non financial
asset as the contractual right to consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones. Invoicing in excess of
earnings are classified as unearned revenue.

Trade recelvables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cast using the effective
Interest rate method, less provision for impairment (if any).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equlvalents Include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand, book overdraft and are considered part of the Company’s cash management
system,

Other bank balances
Other bank balances include deposits with maturlty less than twelve months but greater than three months and balances and
deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.

Impairment of financlal assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company appiles expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impalrment loss trade receivables (If any).

De-recognitlon of financlal assets

The Company de-recognises a flnanclal asset anly when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or It
transfers the financlal asset and substantlally all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated llability for amounts It may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognlse the financlal asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds recelved.

Financial liablilitles

i) Initlal measurement
All financlal liabilities are recognised Inltially at fajr value net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's
flnancial liabllities Include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables etc.

il) Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the following categories:
1) financial labilitles measured at amortised cost

2) financial liabillties measured at falr value through profit and loss and

Financial llabllities at amortised cost:
Financial liabllities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are inltlally recognized at falr value, and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Flnancial liabilities at FVTPL
Financlal llabilities at FVTPL represented by contingent consideratlon are measured at fair value with all changes recognised In
the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowlngs are Initlally recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. Subsequently, these are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR') method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount er premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of proflt and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amount represent liabllities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which
are unpald. The amounts are unsecured and are usually pald within 30 days of recagnition. Trade and other payables are
presented as current llabllities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting year. They are recognised
initially at thelir fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR model.
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1C.5.11

1C.5.12

1C€.6

1C.7

1¢.8

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financlal assets and liabilities are offset and the met amount is reported in the balance sheet where there Is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liabllity simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and In the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

Leases

As a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and building. The Company assesses whether a contract
contalns a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for canslderation. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identifled asset
(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iil)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Campany recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU"} and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term
leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certaln lease arrangements [ncludes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets
and lease liabilities includes these options when it Is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are Initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initlal amount of the lease liabllity adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease pius any Initlal direct costs less any lease
Incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreclation and Impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreclated from the commencement date on a straight-line basls over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverabllity whenever events or changes in
clrcumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (l.e. the higher of the falr value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) Is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases,
the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs,

The lease llabllity Is Initlally measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the Interest rate implicit In the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrawing rates in the country of domiclle of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether It will exercise an extension or a termination
option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows,

As a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor Is classifled as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classlfied as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income s recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Inventories

Inventarles of stores and spares and fuel relating to mall operatlons are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is calculated on welghted average basis and comprises expenditute Incurred in the normal course of business In bringing such
Inventories to their focation and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Obsolete, slow moving and
defectlve Inventorles are identified at the time of physical verification of inventories and where necessary adjustment Is made
for such items.

Inventory related to development of real estate project undertaken have been reported under Work-in Progress. Direct
expenditure incurred relating to constructlon actlvity Is inventorised. Other expenditure Incurred during the constructlon perlod
Js Inventorised to the extent the expense Is directly attributable to complete the project. Land purchased and held for future
development and cost incurred on construction projects where the revenue Is yet to be recognised are also tncluded hereln.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Current tax expense Is recognised In profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly In other comprehenslve income or equity, in which case it Is recognised in
other comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantlvely enacted
at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current incormne taxes are recognized
under “income tax payable” net of payments on account, or under “tax receivables” where there Is a credit balance.
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1C.9

1C.10

1C.11

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabllitles and assets, and they refate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable entlity, or an different tax entltles, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to ltems recognised directly in other
comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehenslve income or equity.

A deferred tax asset Is recognised to the extent that it ts probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it Is no tonger probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Employee benefits

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified as either deflined
contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the Company’s anly obligation Is to pay a fixed
amount with no obligatlon to pay further contributions If the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits,
The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized
as expense during the period when the employee provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation
to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company.

Contributlon to Provident fund are accounted for on accrual basis and are made to the fund maintained with the Reglonal
Provident Fund Commissioner, West Bengal. Provision for gratulty liability and leave encashment llabllity, which are unfunded,
are made on the basls of actuarial valuation done at the end of the year by an Independent actuary.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognized In other comprehensive Income. Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined beneflt liability or asset.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains or losses are not reclassified to proflt or loss in subsequent periods.

Provislons and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal ar constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obllgation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the conslderation reguired to settle the present obligatlon at the
end of the reporting year, taking Into account the risks and uncertaintles surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the ecanomic benefits required to settle a provislon are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognized as an asset, if it Is virtually certain that reimbursement wlill be received and the amount of the
recelvable can be measured rellably.

Contingent liabliities are possible obligations that arlse from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or hon-accurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where It Is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated rellably, the obligation Is
disclosed as a contlngent liability, unless the probabllity of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilltles are
disclosed on the basls of judgment of the management/Independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Revenue recognition
The Company earns revenue primarlly from rental income arising from let out of mall properties. The Company aiso generates
revenue from property development In residentlal sector.

Revenue Is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to recelve in exchange for those products or services.

In respect of fixed-price contracts, the Company is cantractually restricted from redirecting the properties to another customer
and has an enforceable right to payment for work done. Revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion method (‘POC
method) of accounting with contract cost Incurred determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation. When
there Is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability,revenue recognition {s postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved, Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a directrelationship
between input and productivity.
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1C.12

1C.13

1C.14

1C.15

1C.16

ic.17

Revenue from the rental Incame arising from let out of mall properties is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue
Is straight lined over the non-cancellable lease term,

Revenue Is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideratlon, adjusted for rental concessions and
incentives, If any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only
passage of time Is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue ("contract llability”) Is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

The Company presents revenues net of indlrect taxes in its statement of Profit and loss.

Other Income
Interest income
For all debt Instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR Is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected lIfe of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financlal asset or to the amortised cost of a financlal labllity.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying assets are capitalised as
part of cost of such asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for thelr intended use. Qualifying assets are
assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for thelr intended use or sale.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtalning a quallfylng asset, the borrowing costs incurred are
capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtalning a qualifying asset, the
capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed based on the welghted average cost of general borrowlng that are
outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition of the quallfying asset.

Capitallsation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for
their Intended uses are complete, Borrowing costs consist of Interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs Include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowlngs to the extent

that they are regarded as an adjustment to Interest costs.
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are Incurred.

Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
welghted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Dlluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the welghted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the welghted average number of Equity shares that would
be issued on converslon of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

Forelgn currency transactions:
The flnanclal statements of the Company are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which Is the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements,

Transactlons In forelgn currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactians, Transactions
remaining unsettled are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the financlal year. Exchange gain or loss
arising on settlement/ translation Is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
noncash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash recelpts or payments and items of income or
expenses associated with Investing or financing cash flows. The cash lows from operating, Investing and financing actlvities of
the Company are seqreqated.

Recent Pronouncements

Minlstry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notlifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as Issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified
any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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a) Capltal work-In~progress Agelng schedule

fs .t Harch 31, 2024 Tin lakhs
Projects
Particulars Profects In temporarily Total
= == R pragress suspended
work-in-progress for the year
Less than 1 year 207.87 . 207.87
1-2 years 31.25 - 31.25
2-3 years - - a
... More than 3 years . - -
Total - 239.12 -
As a1 March 31, 2023 s —s
Projects in Rrojects
Particulars s temporarily Total
proor suspended
{Amount in Capital work-in-pregress for the year
Less than 1 year 84,30 . 84.30
1-2 years = = .
2-3years - . -
More thari 3 years — E 3
Total 84,30 -
3 nvastment properly
As at As at
LA March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Carrying amount ol
Bullding . i - 5.126.30 5217 11
| ToTAL — 5.125.30
Particulars Bullding
Grose carrylng amount
iAs at Aprit 1, 2022
Additions
|Asat Marel 31, 2023
 Additions. =
Az at March 31, 2024 5.738,59_
A26.67
50.81 |
517.40
WNet cerrying amount
As at March 31, 2023 5,217.11 ,217.11
Az at March 31, 2024 5:126.30 5,126.30

Notes:
3.1 The Campany has Identified Its bullding located in Godrej BKC (Murmbal) as Investment progerty. The falr value of such property at
Mumbal has been derived using the markat comgarable rate of the surrbunding area as at March 31, 2024 on Lhe basis of a valuation
carried out as on the resp date by an valuer not related to the Company. The independent valuer 1s Government
reqistarod valuer @nd s defined uncer rule 1 of Companles (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 and have approp:late
quallfications and experlenca In the valuation of properties.

Detalts of the Company's investment property and Information about the fair value hlerarchy are as follows:

Tin
Level of
Fair value as at | Falr valite av &t
LA hierachy for |y, rch 31, 2024 | Maren 31, 2023

Cnn‘!m:l;l:l units located in 6,855.00 6,760.00

2 !
Duest, PFeope: i Lumibnd murned a Lense fee of 15, 706,97 MKNG ouind 17 30-24, (FF 21-23 - s 21210
Detalls of direct op: 9 arising from property:
E intakhs
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
Direct operating expenses arsing from | property that rental income| 52.95 92.43

durina the vear.
Clrect cperating espensas arlsing from investment property that did not generate rental income

mar
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o«
Notes forming part of the financlal statement as at March 31, 2024
Intanglible assets
Tin lakbs
As at As at
Particutars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Carrvina amounts of : — i
Computer software 5.45 552
JoTaL__ — — 545 CE5
T in tnkihe
Particulars Computer Total
software
Gross filock ___ ==
As at April 01, 2022 _ 4833 ETETH
Additions 1.35 1.35
As gt March 31,2023 = ELX 3557 |
Additions 292 2.92
Disnoaals
Ax at March 31, 3024 52 89 52,59
|Accumniated 2t
AE#t Anrll 91, 2022 41,69 41,62 |
Additions 246 2.96
Dispasaly
Az 2t Mareh 34, 2027 43,15 44,15
Additions 2.99 299
Dispéeils —— -
{AsatMarch 33,2028 47.14 4714
Net Block
As at March 31, 2023 5.52 5.52
As:at Mirch 31,2024 5.4 545 |
Investmenis
¥ in lakne
As at As at
e March 34, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Non-current T
A in y C: q d, fully pald up, carried at cost
(1) in Equity Instruments
45,70,000 Equity Shares (Previous year: 43,70,000 Equity Shares) $70.28 550.29
of Metromark Green Commedities Private Limited of Rs. 10 each
(i) Other Investments
RPSG Unigue Advisorv LLP 1.775.92 1,729.52
-Towards Partner Caoltal Contrfoution
B.Investment in Jolnt Venture, unquotad, fully pald up, csrried at cost
(1) Other Investment
Trnvestments In Altérnathie Investment Funds TATF)
+ B,450.83 Class A units {Frevious Yesr: 8,153 units) of RPSG Venluie Fund - Serfes [ of Rs, 8,450,83 6,353.04
1,010,000 each
- 41,250 Class AS units (Previaus Year: 19,333 unils) of RPSG Capital Venture Fund - Serles II 4,125 00 1,933.33
bf Rs. 10,000 each,
RPSG Ventures Advisorv LLP 0.96 0.96
Towards Partner Capltal Contribution
. In Other q d, fully pald up, carried at FVOCI
(1} in Equity Instruments
1 Equity Share (Previous Year: 1 Equity Share) of PEP Technologles Private Limited of face value 1.03 1.04
of Rs.10 each.
4,200 Equity Shares {Previous Year: NIL) of Shapping Centres Association of India of face value 0.42
of Rs.10 each,
(i) in Comp y Canvertible Share
2,796 Compulicry Conwertilde Treferenca Share {freviois Year: 2,796 Compusory Convertible 951.74 970.45
Frafurance Shares) of FEP Technologins frivate Umited of face value of #3.10 each.
D. Deemed Investment - Guarantee (refer Note no, 46(b){g))
pi on behalf of lellow subsidlary
Dedmad Inwestmant 40.53 176.03
[ToTAL 1591671 13.716.60 |
2 Jo takhs
As at As at
PG March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
; i 15,010./2 11.716.86'

Aggregate smount of unguoted

Agaregate amaunt ol Impaicront in value of NvESEMANS
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6. Loans
e = Tin fakhs
As at As at
Barticylars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
fUnseruied, comsidered oood) ) o 0 S
Loni to emiplnyeas 411 495
TOTAL R 4,85 ¢
7.  Other financial assets {Non-Current)
5 As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
IUnsecurec. considered 000-01_ .
Security deposhs 4358 42.29
Dther Recelvables 257.33 *
TOTAL 300,21 42.29 |
B.  Tncome tax asseis fnet)
T bt lakhie
Particulars pslat LOLD
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Advance taxes i 1.699,53 1.885.95
iLess : Qurrenttax poovision {147330) Al
(TOTAL 22514 186595
9. Other non-currént assets
¥ in lakihe
As at As at
pRu U LIO March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
(Unsocured. considered oood)
Malntenance deposlt 8.83 6.83
Qthers
Prepald Expenses 5125 3s2
Deferred rent 635.08 125.42
Unamortised Expanses - 74,28
| Unearned Interest 72.26 -
LTOTAL Fe74d | 000 313,05
10 Inventories
2 in lakhs.
As at As at
iculare March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Inventores [lower of cott ang not feakzabie vatus);
» Finlshed Goods 114.95 133,23
= Work In progress 1,753 77 1,753.77
- Steres arid Lperes 2R.91 27.61
.807.80 | 1.914.61

I0TAL
The mathod of valuation of irventaries han lean stotnd in Note No. 107

11  Trade roceivables

i € in takha,
As at As at

i March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Trade Mecetvables toniidered onod- Seciired 10163 11380

Jrade Recelvables considered aood- Unsecured 13936 128.09
AMiowarca for expecied credl loss 126,49 fan
nbifled e - 207,23
TOTAL 80480 | 1.034.3% )

). The average credit period on sales of goads or provision of services is 0-30 days No Interest Is charged orl any amount recelvable
from trade debtors even for the perod beyond the credit period,

ll. Movements In alowance for ¢xpected credit losses of recaivables is as below:

€ i takhy
As at As at
Ramtisnises March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balance st the beginaing of the year . 1B.77] 1874
Allowances made during the vear 7.42 .
LB2tance at the end of the year 26,38| 18,77

Out of the Trade recelvables, Rs.385.52 lakhs (March 31, 2023:Rs 513.33 lakhs} Is due from the Companys major custeners l.e.
having more than 5% of total sutstanding trade receivables.

NI There are na outstanding debts due from direclors or olher officers of the company.
iv. Refer Note no, 41 for Lhe existence and amounts of restrictions on trade recelvables pledged as security for lahiities.
v. Trade recelvable agelng schedule

As at March 31, 2024

T i lakhs
Undisputed
Trade
Particulars receivables — Total
consldered
aood
(1) Unbilled Revenue T
(H) Not Due 334.87
(ill} Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Less than 6 Months 439.04
6 months- 1 year 29,14
1-2years 27.82
2 -3 years -
More Lhian 3 years 0.12
(lv) Less: Allowance for Lossos £26 19
|TaTAL
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12

13

14

15

16,

a)

b)

<)

As at March 31, 2023

Parliculars

March 31, 2024

*inlakhs
Undisputed
Trade
Particulars receivables - Total
consldered
good
(1) Unbilled Revenue 207.23 207,23
(Ii} Not Due 485,75 48575
(1) Dutstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Less Lhan 6 Months 346,41 346,41
6 months- 1 year 3.18 318
1 -2 vears 1.50 4.50
2-3yeus . N
More than 3 years 305 3,05
[1v} {ess° Affgwance foc {osses . | dsnl  nsan
TOTAL — io313% 1.931.35 |
Cash and cash equivalents
T i lakhs
As at As at

March 31, 2023

Ralances with banks

Particulars

March 31, 2024

= In cATEnt Acchunts 66813 475.15
« Bank dopostts with argifol moturity of mito 3 months 2,200,00 -
Cash an band 394 4,57,
JOrAL 2.895,07.) __ 4r5.71

Loans
X in laktis
As at As at

March 31, 2023

{Unsecured, cons:dered aoad}

Particulars

March 31, 2024

Loans to employees 3.30 3,30
TOTAL 3.30 330
Other financlal assets {Current)
L inlakhs
As at As at

March 31, 2023

fUnsecured, considered peadi

Accroed [nterast 0.60 .
{Secumity deoosits 18.59 18.63
iRacatvable towards chalmms and services randerad 146.98 347,69
tr fipceiv 230 §% a0 &Y |
[OTAL 197.08 454,03
Other current assels
€ s lakche
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
= Advance to suopllers 533 11.5/7
~ GST credit 1.075.89 962.02
- Prepald expenses B6.06 71.47
< Delerred rent . 79 82
- Unamortized Expenses - 23,72
- Unearned Interest 19.53 -
- Qthars - — = 25.78 »
LTOTAL 1.212.59 1.186.60 |
Equity share capltal
£ i lakhy
As at As at
e —— March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Authorised
27,00,00,000 shares of Rs 10 each iy pald up. (March 31, 2023 : 27,00,00,000 shares of RS 27,000.00 27,000 00
27.000.00 27.000.00
Issued, subscribed and paild-up capital
26,25,20,000 shares of Rs 10 each fuly pakd up. {March 31, 2023: 26,25,20,000 shares of Rs 26,252.00 26,252.00
10 cach fully pald up,}
TOTAL 36352.00 26,252.90_|
Reconcillation of the number of equily shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year are as given below:
[Particutars As at March 31, 2024 z As At March 31,3023
Nq nl sheres| Cinlakha | 3] fakhs__
af thancs G &1 the treg g of e year 26,25 20,000 26, 152.00 26,25,20,000 26,752.00
Adil; Shares Issued during the year B - > -
Number of anares sutgandipg at the ang of e year 76,75, 10,000 2,252.00 26,25,20,000 26,252.00
Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par vatue of Rs.10 per share. Each sharehelder Is ellgible for ane vole per
share held. The equity shareholders are entilled to receive dividend as declared from Lime to tima In tha avant of liquidation of the
cnmparw‘ the holders of cqulty shares wi!l be entiticd to recelve the sales proceeds of the remaining assets of the company aller

lon of all the p The
shareholders,

shall be In proportion lo the number of equity shares held by the
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d)  Shares of the heid by Holding C Y
% Change
Partteulars As 8t March 31, 2029 As at March 31, 2023 during the year
.
ik e - o Numbper of %o of torai Number of %o of total A of totai
t
Name of the Promater ghares | shares shares shpres shates
[P Veptures Limfied 2635 J0000 | 100 0% 362530000 | 100.0% [ —
{*] Percentagn changed during \he yeir has been contputed basls the aumber af shares at the beglrning of fhe year
)  Detalls of shareholders holdina more than 5% shares In the Companv
e Partculars 1 AeatMajch 331, 2034 Mg ay March
Number of % of total Number of % of totatl
Name of the shareholder ;
= sharex sharés shares shares
L) Al Lkt 2625 20 000 100 % 26.2% 30 000 100 B4
f) In the period of five years Immediately prececing March 31,2024, \he Company has nelther issued bonus shares, bought back any
equily shares nor has allotted any equity shares as tully pald up wilhout payment being received in cash
@) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and coniracts or commitinents for Lhe sale of shares or disinvestment
17 Other eaulty e
¥l fakhs
As at As at
il — March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rexerves and surplus
1) Retalned ezrnings 171 13,589.89 8,259.07
TOTAL = Aysanerl __ R.asn.07 )
17.1 Retalned earnings
T inlakhs
A9 at As at
Barticulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balance at beginning of year §,255.07 4,306.15
Profit for the vear 5.349.33 3,834.11
Tt=ms of other. prehensive Income ¢ fsed directly in retained earnings
- Jlems that wil hot e seziavgified bo the datameit of orofif or loss, net of taves - (8,510, 118.81
Balance ai end of vear 33,58%3.89 e
Retained earnings represenis the undistributed profits of the company. The amount that can he distributed by the company as
to Its equity 5 Is determined on the basls of the balance of the retalned earnings of the linancial stalements alker
consldering the requirements of the Cempanies Act, 2013,
18 Non Current Borrowinas
T in lalbe
As at As at
Baxlicular March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Becured
[Rucee term loans from banks 3,766.48
Tolal borrowinas - 3.766.49
_L_Hs: Current maturity of Iong term barrowinas fRefer Nole no, " (3,458.12}
an current y - ELTR
14.1 Nature of security
The above term loan Is secured by way of hypothecation wkh an exdusive charge on all moveable fixed assets, current asscts and
scheduled recelvables of the Company with respect o the Mall Project, both present and future, and also with equitable assignment of
all rights under the Development Agreement executed with CESC Limkted.
The carrying amount of inancial and non-Anandlal assets pledged as security for non current borrawings are disclosed in Note No 41
18:2 Yerms of rapaymaent of tupee terms Joan is stated belaw:
¥ in lakhs
Rate of interast Terms of As at As at
Particulars repayment March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
(Eunag torm [6an fram Banks 545 ik =1 5.766.4%
“Intercst rates on Rupee térm loans Trom banis are based dn soroad ever lendory’ bonehimark rate
16.3 The maturity profile of rupee term loan is as follows: o
¥ in lakhs
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Loan with residual maturity of upto 1 vear 1 3.461,88
Lean with residual maturitv between 1 to 3 years . 308.41
Less- Amortization of transaction enst - {1R0
TOTAL = 3.766.45
18.4 Tre Company has not defaulled In repayment of loan during the vear and further there Is no default In lozn cavenants.
19.a. Leose Llablities {Non-Current)
inlakhs
i Ao il U
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
e
Lease Llabllites 18.063.41 17,260.60
I0TAL 16.063.41 AT.760,60 )
19.h, Other financial liabilities (Non-Current}
o T in lakng
q As at As at
pamticules March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Securfty deposit from tenants 1.437.26 1.984.36
Creditnre for canttal nande 1000 29,00
k 144725 2,021.36
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20 Provislons (Non-Current)
*in faths

As at

! As at
Parti
articulacs March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Provision for smployee benolits

Provislon for gratulty 127.30 104,08
Poowtglon for lraws enceshment - 119 A9 9f &6
qoraL . 21719 103,64
21 Other Non Current Liabilities
®inlaihs
q As at As at
Part
anticulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Uncarned rent . 141.91 T05.05 |
Financla! Guarmites Obligation o —_— 405 4;
TOTAL. 141,91 21417
Current Llabllities
22. Borrowings
¥ in Inkng
Particulars A58 Aslat

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Current malrilles of lonq-lerm borrawing (Refer Note No. 18)

= boan ko) Basks - 2458 13 |
| TQTAL = 145812 |
22(a) Lease Llabilltles (Current)
¥ in lakhs
i As at As at
Particutars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Lease Liabiities 21,74 1610 |
LTOTAL 21.74 10,30 |
231 Trade payables
Tinla
As at As at
Rarticulars Mareh 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Cregitars for supphies and senices

{A) talal Outstanding dues of micre anterprises and small crlgrprides 19.96 26.73
(B} Lotal Outstanding ducs of creditnrs other than micro enterprlses and small 4,424,31 4,95241
enlerprists
{_{mmn_umﬂq Pavahle 60601 EO7.14
TOTAL 5,050,328 570620

|. Trade payable ageing schedule

As at March 31. 2024

Particulars MSME Cithats
for periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 vear 19.96 3.107.89 3.127.85
1-2vyears - 1.389.92 1.389.92
2 -3 ycars 483,51 483.51
|____More than 3 yean 49.00 _20.00
LTRTAL = Sgea)] 505038 |
As ot March 31, 2023
- in lakhs
¥ MEME Qthers Total
Outstanding for fallowing parlods from date of transaction
Less than 1 vear 26.73 2.642,92 2,668.65
1-2years = 1,395.48 1,395.48
2 - 3 years . 1.677.42 1.677.42
. Mare than Ayveare - 4173 A1 72
T01AL 20.73 5,759.55 570628 |
24 Other financial liabilitles (Current)
® in lakhs
As at As at
e March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Securlty deposit from tenants 3.169.74 1,808.94
Interest accrued but not due - 0.94
(Creditors for capftal goods 116,47 97.78
thers 21.28 iy
FOTAL 3.317.49 1.510.84
25 Othar currentilabliilies
T inlakhs
As at As at
e March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Advances
= Construction project advance 25.74 26 51
- Advance from Cuslomers 33,81 104,54
Olhers
Limaarsed sent 153,28 70.61
Deferved rent 8343 -
Fnantial Guarantee Ohligation - 3138
Unearped Income 37.50 -
Statuliey dues 183.20 310,77
Az oane £C0 Nakl 37 .18 .
i XU R TR e dadse
L 549,38 543.01.1
* Rufar note 48
26 Provislons
Tlnlakhs
As at As at
LT March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Proviion for employes benell
Frovisien for gratuily 1.04 0.80
Proyition fr leave = B 1 b 0.1
[ TOTAL 14.24 181
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27 Revenue trom oosrations

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31,2024 31,2023
|Sale of products e —— . —— =
Revenue rom praperly ¢evelopinent 48.92 411.2%
Prervsitun from e of clullying and acastanes 100 33 234 77
SRR L — L
Sale of services
Llcznss faes 1.644,91 1.454.41
AmanTes Liane Fees 2.709.54 367.02
Equipment usage charges 3,488 30 4,563.27
Signage usage charges 2,054.18 2,743.01
Revenue share from occuparits of the mall 956.73 1237.63
Matntenance services 2.124.81 221709
Car oatking recelpts 381 82 377.65
Event based fee . 28546 ) 25527 |
L. 13.258,65
[ToTAL 13.795.00 13.902,67_
T in lakhs
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Revenue by Offerinas:
- Revenue from Rental operations (Saie of Services) 13,645.75 11,256,65
- Sale of dothing and accessories 100.33 234.77
13.746.08 313.497.42
Revenue by Contract tvoe
" [ = 48.92 41125
oAt 4802 [ 41135

The Company has recognized the following revenue refated contract llabliitles and receivables from contract with custemers !

. ———y £ in lakhy
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
bdileieiid 2024 | 3023
—Contract Labilaies - Advance fram ) N1 S A B
TOTAL 33.81 104,54 |
Ein talchs
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2924 2023
Trate Receivables - Grass B30.99 1.050.12
Loss oAl fgr cosdit fonses {26 104 1187
[TOTAL B04.80 1,031.35
The followlng table shows how much of the revenue in the current reporting peried relales to the carried forward contract
lLabllities and how much relates to performance obligations that were not satished In the prior yeer:
€ in takns
For the year For the year
Particufars ended March ended Merch
AL2024 __1__21.2023
Cantract Liabilities = Advance from Costomers
Onaning balance 104.54 59.68
Recelved during the vear 33.81 104 54
Salos durine L viear £104.5100 (59,681
| Clogng halange 341 104 5
TOTAL DAL 10953
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28 Other Income

LALRETTE
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
imerest income
From bank 70 62 14 35
From Income tax refund 72,33 40.74
Others 12.80 3.9
Inenwnisr from lavestment in Alternate Investment Funds 1,187 .83 .
Listiltes written back 6.71
inenmn [som sale of scrao 189 310
Incoma from sale of asset - 0.04
| Financly| Guarsmpe Inpome — Ero 1972
TOTAL — =: ————— - —— 1.669.68 93,56

29 (a) Cost of material consumed

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Cost of matenal consumed
- Property Develapment 7029
- Traded Goods . - 16137
LContof - L Erd 8
{b) Purchase of Stock-in-Trade/ Traded Goods
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
R 21,2024 a1, 2023
__Purghace of Slock:in-Teada [ Toaded Goods. an 24 n
Purchase of Sipci-in-Trado / Traded Goody — 1] 3
(c) Changes in Inventaries of Finished Goods and Work In Progress
For the year For the year
Partlculars ended March ended March
31, 2024 31,2023
Cpening Stock of fnshod Geods & Work in Prograss 1.887.00 1,200.40
ods & Wark It Prograss 1,868,727 1.0887.00
18,28 31

30 Employee benefits expense

For the year

For the year

Particulare anded March ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
Satarins and wanrt TIIM Fy 1.054,7%
Cantrbuton (o orovidant and etner funds G754 61.33
Siaf wollare _1197 1596
i 1358.52 1.352.04 |
31 Finance costs
For the year For the year
Particutars ended March ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Inlerest gxounie on Lxrawinat and olhars 302.35 510,62
Interest on Lease Liabllitles 1.791.65 1.761.64
Othet Dotrowing costs 22,25 20.26 |
Total 2121.35 2.392.73 |

32 Depreclation and amortization expenses

For the year

Far the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2023 31, 2023
&p?dallun of property, plant arnd equipment and investment property 5 1,655.97 1,656.69
{Including ROU Asset)
/Amartization af Intangible assets 299 246
Tatal 1,558,906 _3.659.15 |

33 Other expenses

For the year

For the year

Partlculars ended March ended March
31,2024 31, 2023

Consumotion of stores and spares 79,24 [ R
Retairs B maniendsice

= Bullding 276.60 141,00

=" plant and machlnery 114 51 129.10

- Others 52.B5 65.98
Remt 1.24 3,54
Bawar and fuel 622:79 625,16
Travalilng and conveyance expenses 35.56 67.29
Communicatiin sxosnses 6,52 561
Latynf and professional charoes 311.2¢ 404.00
Insurance charaes 106.95 106.20
|Printing & slationery 517 8,77
Manpawer service charges 730.37 74e.56
Reruneration to auditors

- Slatutory 3udit and Limied reviews. 36 00 36.00

- Tax audlt 4.00 4.00

- Other Services 1.67 1.67
fad Debt 4.56 =
Bank Charges a.20 4.82
Brokoraoe 2743 21.B4
Aates & taxes 458,96 232,64
Promation expense 244 59 168.26
Franchiyes fees d 7.34
Lass on sssat discarded 26139 170.78
CSH refated exoense (Refer note no. 48) 56,76 41.15
Allewance for cxoccted credit loss 742
Advance! Prepaid written off 5,00 26.95
General enarges 4.12 6.09
[Hifeil#nEngs evosne 114 58 18085
[TOTAL — 3.I69,59 2:351.53.
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34, Income tax expense

¥ Income tax recoanised in the statement of profit and loss

it Lakne
Far the year For the yoar
Particulars ended March ended March
S 31,2023 31,2023
#} Cuprant tax
Curimnt veal $,473.29
b) Deferred tax
tverss! of terporary dilfarencey 194,12 126157
‘rnm[ x expenae — iess.sl | i.263.
11} Tax expense recognised In OCT
Fin lakhs
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
S —— Ep— = R — 31,2024 31.2023
Deferred tax
of po [benaft plany {152} 0.51
Fair vamﬂa_s_s_\j_qam an prumum-‘ d a5 af FVTOCK (4.713 1945
otel 1ax recognised in Other Comprehansive Income {823} _39.590 |
11i) Defecred tax assets and liabilitles
¥ in lakihs
Recognised
As at March thraugh Recagnised As at March
particulare 31,2023 Statementof | through OCI 31,2024
Profit and Loss —=
Liabilities
Proparty, Plant & Equlomeant and intanaitdes {5,017.19} €169.92) = 5.187,11}
thers {77.28) (101.25) 117853}
Aspels
Items tovered under section 438 56.38 11.97 1,52 69.687
Others 1825.99 138,70 4,71 1.969.40
|Unahaeitind ¢ P’“'M‘.P" Ard usines [n4s 6362 £63.62) = =
T 1 tiabilities} 13,148 481 (284,12} 6. 13,326,371
Tinfakhs
Recognised
As at through Recognised As at March
ki March 31,2022 | Statementof | through OcI 31,2023
Profit and Loss
Lilabliitles
$ ar and | ul 14.834.36) (182,81} {5.017.19}
Others 111.75) 165.51) (77.28}
Assets
Ttems covered under section 438 172,31 1115.42) (@511 56.38
QOthers 1.635.77 229.67 139.45) 1.825.99
Lnabosorbiad depraciation and business loss 119110 £1,122.48) - 8167 |
ctal deferred tax asset/[ijabilities] 11.546.95) 11,2657} {39,961 {31464
w) of tax exp and ac profit
- = Ein lakhs
For the year | Far the yaar
Particulars ended Mareh cnded March
313034 31,3023
Prafil belore lax E£.5982. 10 505269
Enacted Tax Rate In Indla 25.17% i5.10%
Cemmded Enacted Tax Expense 1,757.26 1.283.09
Ineome! S xpanEss hol gndyclite for 15x purprss jra1an f1.283.0%)
law exponse }_,ﬂ'ﬂ.._}j =
35 Other comprehensive Income
For the year For the year
Parilculars ended March ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Ttems that will nol Bo reciassificd 16 the statement of profil and ioss
{1} Remeasurements of post-emolovement benefit plans (6,02Y 2.0L
{u} Fair value {l9s5) / ain on investments deslanated as at FVTCCIL (18,72) 156.76
Y Fremionin 139 o 20 ibarme Vhar wilt ot ha rariaccifuid o aeafie or love 623 r30 ngy
Total othes income (1m.51) 11853 |

36 Earnings per share (EPS)

L lon f exrnlng pershare
For the year For the year
Particulare ended March ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Face value of eaulty shares Rs 10 Rs 10
wetghted average number of equlty shares outstanding 26,25,20,000 26,25,20,000
Benflt-for tha usar { 5.349.33 3.834.11
2.04 1.46
Welahted average number of equity shares outstanding 25,25,20,000 26,25,20,000
Welghted average no. of equity shares resulling from share application
pending allstment
No. of equity shares used to compute diluted earninas pcr share 26,25,20,000 26,25,20,000
Profit for the vear {7 in Lakhs} 534933 3.834:11
Weighted average samings per snare (diluted) ) 2.04 1,45
37 G ll and Conti L
(a) Capital & Other Commitments :
€ in lakns.

For the year

For the year

Limilnd for susoly ol

Particulars ended March ended March
- 1.2024 31,2023
(a) Estimated arnount of contracts remaining to be executad on capltal account and not 21.81 131 1.04
pravided for (net)
() Commited contvibntion in slteraate ivestment funds 12.751.97 1331398
(<) Guaranten Bsuned By bank on benall of the Company towards security desisit with CESC 30, (o 200.00

{b) There are no contingent ilabliitles as ar March 31, 2024 (As at March 31, 2023 ; Rs, Nil)
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38

as

Lease

{1 Non cancellable operating lease (Lessor)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31.2024 34,2023
| easa Rental receivable from lefanks:
‘Within | ves 3,543,209 1,996.69
Later than 3 vear bul not later than £ vears 4,384,591 2,912,585
Latlr tha S vealy — .
{1i) Chanaes in the carrying value of sight of use assets for Lhe year ended Marc!) 31, 2024
¥ in lakhs
_F';a_uﬂs‘mu_qt_z i 3 g
. or the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended Harch
- 31,2024 -
|Chrening Balanca 10,787 00 4,885
additions durlng the year . 6539 80
Deletion during tha year . .
Beprachation 437,31 437.31
Closing Batance 10349 69 10, 787,00
® In lakiha
Catrgory of ROL Axsct- Ballding.
For the year For the year
Particulare ended March ended March
31, 2024 31,2023
Caening Balsnoe 40,78 .
Addtinns durlna te vear T =627
Daletian during the vear . .
[Benreclation 18.79 15 E6|
Chslng Balancs 1182 Atk 71
() The loBowing Is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabHities as at March 31,2024
5 For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
| 31,2024 1 31.2023
Chirrent Lease Liatiiy 1.4 10,20
Hon Curient Lessa Liability 10063 41 1226080,
{iv) The Is the In |ease lat during the year ended March 31, 2024:
T In lukchs.
Far the year
Particulars ended March
3.A0R4.
{ Dening Batance 17.778.80
Adaitiony dUnng thi vear >
Finangs tad) Akcrund during thé'vear 179165
Deletions/ Reversal H
. Lol |nase Labilti 1.485.00
Clasing Baldice 18 084,65/

(v) Expense pertalning ta teases which has been dentified as Short Term amounts ta Rs.1.24 lakhs, (March 31, 2023: Rs.3.31 lakhs).

{vl) There are no Expense pertaining to leases which has been identified as Law Value ,

{vll) Contractual maturities of lease ilabilities as at March 31, 2024 on an undiscounted basis: Rs,54,233.31 lakhs (March 31, 2023
Rs.55,719.12 lakhs)

The table below provices detalls the co maturities of Jease flablities as at March 31, 2024 on an undisccunted basls:
! in taktis
For the year For the year
Parliculars ended March ended March
31,2028 31.2023
Less than ore vear 1.633,30 1,485.81
Ong lo fivd veis 6,767.97 6.629.71

| More thoo five vears 45 R12 04 47 02 60

(vill)There are no payment made on account of Variable Lease Paymesnt .
(ix) There are no future cash outflows to which Lhe lessee Is potentially exposed that are not refiected In the measurement of lease
Hablfitles.

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED
AcL’). The disdosures pursuant to the sald MSMED Act are as lollows:

T in lakhs
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
—31.2024 34,2023 |
Principal amount due to suppliers yegistered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at 19.96 26,73

year end,

Interest due to suppliers registered urder the MSMED Act and remaining unpald as at year end =
Principal amounts pald to suppllers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond Lhe appojnted day
disting the year

IntBrest pajd, other than under Scctlan 16 of MSMED Agt, to suppliers registered undér the
MSMER Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Intarest pald, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, * -
beyand the appointed day during the year
Interest dus and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already . =

made
[futthier inberess remaining due and pavable for earliecvars = .4

Tne above.infarmalion reqéf’ding Micro and Small enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identifled on
the basls of Information available with the Company.
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40 Segmant Reporting

Based on the "Management approach® as refined hy Ind AS 108, the chief aperating decislon maker (CCDM) evaluates the Company's
performance and ailecates resawces based on an analysks of varicus perlormance Indicatars. The Company is éngaged in the business
of development and operation of mall and construclion cf real estate projects Both the dusiness camprising of operation of mafl and
real esiate are o by seclor as a single op G segmeiil

Incluced In the revenue arising from direct sales of producls and services cf Rs.13,975 lakhs (March 31, 20Z3: Rs.13,902.67 lakhs)
are revenues of approximately Rs.1,219.09 akhs (March 31, 2023: Rs,1,346 45 jakhs) which arose fram the sale to Company's sir:gle
largest custamer. No other customer contribured 10% or more of the Company™s ievenue for both 202324 and 2022-23,

41 Assels pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Fin lalihe
For the year For the year
Particutars ended March ended March
31,2024 31,2023 |
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 2,894.07 479.72
Bartk balances athar than cash and cash souivslents - -
Trade recelvables 804.80 1,034.35
| Total current assots pledaed ux security 3650.87 351007 |
| Non-current
Bullding 28.685.16 29,2:6.31
Piant and equipment 2,936.60 3,374.95
Furniture anc fixtures 125.50 145.09
(Dffice equipment 27.71 32,29
Computers 7.98 7,65
[Caplta) work-In-proaress 239.12 84.30
assets 5.45 5.52
blc assets under 3
Total non-currents assels pledoed oe gecurily 32,027.52 32,866.15 |
Total assets pledoed a4 security _35,726.36

42 Emuleyce banefits plane

a) Deflned benefit plana:

Gratuity:
The company has an ohfigatlen towards gratuity, a defined bencfit retirement plan covering ellgible employees. Tha plan provides for 2
fump-sum payee to vemed wmployess al retimmaent, death while In pray or o iy of of an amopunt

equivalent 1o 15 Lo 16 déys salary payatie for sach campleted year of service. Vesling accurs ypon complation af five years ol service.
The Company atcomts for the labilty Tor gratuly tedefts poyable In the foture based on an sctusidt valuslion, The Company &

exposed to actuarial risk, inlerest risk, salary risk, graphk risk, regs y tlsk.
The results of the actuarial study for the for employee benefits as c by (he actuary are shown befow:
® in lakhy
For the year For the year
endad March ended March
Particulars _3'1":" PREAE
Gratuily Gratulty
Princloal actuarial assumotions
Discount rate 6.95% 7.15%
Range of compensatlon Increase 5% 5%
Attrition rate oer thousand;
upto 40 vears R R
40 years and above NIl Nit
Welahtedt averane duration of Ine dehnéd henefit olan(in vears) 819 9.12
c of of income sl <harae
Current service cost 1198 10.84
Interest cost 743 6:36
Recoanltion of oast service cost = 5

Wt/ mination loss
L"I‘__n‘.'nl charoed ta statement af orefil arines
tal charged ta siatement af drofll arinds

For the yaar For the year
particulars en:l‘ed’g:::h ended March
Grazuity |

Movements in net labllity/(asset)

f#iei Nabllitv at the beafnnina of the vear 104 88
|Empdaver contributions (1.97)

[Tatal expense r In the c of profit or loss 19.41

Tatal amuunt recaanised In OCI L B0

Net llabiflity ot the end of the vear 138.34

Reconcillation of benelit ablloations

(Objigation at start of the vear 104 88 90.76
Curyent service cost 11.98 10.84
|Tnterest cost 7.43 6.36
|Benefits oaid directly by the Comoanv 1.9 (1.07Y
Extra pavmeants or exuenses/{incomi) " &
Oblioation of past senvco cost =,
Acluarlal loss 607 1201}
Defined benefits oblloations at the end of the vear 12534 104.88
Re-messurements of defined benefit olans

Actuarial galn/(loss) due to changes In financlal assumptlons - 0.81
Actuaral galn / (losses) from demographic assumpllons = .

fal tl on account of e iSon 1.20. ]

Total 1al galn/({loss) In OCI {6.02) 2.01
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b) of signin
The following table present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial assumption, holding other assumptions constant,
showing how the defined beneft obligation would have been affected by changes In the relevant actuarlal assumptions that were
reasonably possible at the reporting date.
o tnlakhs
For the year For the year
anded March ended March
Particulars ay 2024 | 31,2023
Sivatuity.
Digcount rale
#1.011% discourt rate 119.97 97.28
-'1,00% discount rate 137.82 11351
Salary escalation
+ 1,00% salarv escalation 137.91 113 61
= 1.00% salarv escalation 119.74 97.07
Withdrawal rate
4 50% withdrawal rate 128.45 104.59
= 30% withdrawal rate 128.23 104.76
Martality rate
4 10.0% moralitv rate 128.38 104.92
- 18 0% moitalte rale 126,30 104 83
€} Risk exposure
(§) Credit risk: IV the scheme Is insured and fully funded on PUC basls there Is a crediL risk to the extent tha Insurer(s) is/ are umable to

an

ny
{iv}

w

(L)

vy

@

e)

discharge their obligalions Including fallure to discharge In Umely manner,

Pay-as-you-go risk: For financiaf g 0 oLl be difficult as the benufits payable will divectly atfoct Uim evuie
and this could be widely Auctuating from year to year. Moreover there may be an opportumily cost of better Irivestrmunt returns
affecUng adversely the cost of the scheme.

Discount Rate risk: The Company Is exposed to the risk of fall In discount rate. A fall iIn discount rate wiii eventuatly Increase int the
ultimate cost of providing the above benefit thereby Increasing the vatue of Lthe Hablfity,

Liquidity risk: This risk adises from the'shor teom asset and lzbiity cash-Now mismatch thereby czusing the company hiestg unable
to pay the benefits as they Fall due in the shoat tesm. Such a slimation esikd be the resuyll of helding large Uliquid assels disregarding
the results of cash-flow projections and cash autgo inflow mismatch (or It could be due to insuffident assets/cash).

Future sotary Incresse risk: The Stheme cost |5 very sensitive to the assumed future salary escalstion rates for all final salary
defined panefit- Schames. 1 actual future ralary escalations are higher than that assumed In the valuation actual Scheme cost and
hence the value of the liabliity will be higher than that astimated.

Demographlc rizk: In the valuation of the |lability certaln demogiaphic (mortality and attrition rates) assumptions ass made. The
Company |s exposed to this risk to the extent ol actusl expuslsnce eventually belng worse conijered to the asdunotisny thereby
causing an Increase In the scheme cost.

Regulatory risk: Gratulty Benefit must compiy wilh) the requirements of the Payment of Gratuty Act, 1972 (as amencer up-to date}.
There Is a risk of chanige In the requiations requiring higher gratulty paymerits (e.g. ralsing the presant caillag of Bs. 20 lakh, ralsing
accrual rate from 15/26 etc.)

Future salary Increase assumed has three basic compenients, namely, increase due to price Inflation, Increase due o increase In future
tiving wage and Increase due to caraer prograss by way of promotion as more sidl is acquired,

The expected maturity analysls of undiscounted defined benefit obllaation Is as below:

For the year For the year
ended March ended March

Particulars = %ﬂ’,_m.d__-
atulity

1,08
93.53
3140

106.32

Dotalls of plan assets

The schama is onfunded.

Defined contribution plan

Provident and pension fund

The State administered Provident and pension fund Is a defined controution scheme, whereby the Company deposits an amount
determined as a Nxed percentage of basic pay to the fund every month.

The expenses recognised during the year towards dofined contkribution plan Is Rs,48 43 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.44.12 iakhs).
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43. Financial Instruments

This sectlon glves an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additioral Information on balance sheet items

that contaln financial instruments.

43.1 Categories of financial instruments
The carrying valua and fair value of financial instruments by categorles

As at March 31, 2024 T in lakhs
Total Carrying
Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost At Cost Valug as on March | Total Fair Value
31. 2024
Financial assets
(a) Cash and bank balances = 2,894.07 - 2,894.07 2,894,07
{b) Loans - 7.41 - 7.41 7.41
(c) Trade receivables - 804.80 - 804.80 804.80
(d) Other flnancial assets - 697.97 - 697.97 697.97
(e} fnvestments 953.19 - 14,963.53 15,916.72 15.916.72
Sub-Total 953,19 4,404.25 14.963.53 20,320.97 20,320.97
Financial liabilites
(a) Borrowlings - - - .
(b) Lease Liabilities - 18,084.65 E 1B,084.65 18,084.65
(c) Trade payables 5,050.28 - 5,050.28 5,050.28
{d) Other financial liabllities - 4,764.75 - 4,764.75 4,764.75
|Sub-Total = 27.899.68 . 27,899.68 27,899.68
As at March 31, 2023 T in lakhs
Total Carrying
Particulars FVTPL FVYTOCI Amortised Cost At Cost Value as on March | Total Fair Value
31,2023
Financlal assets
(a) Cash and bank batances = 479.72 . 479.72 479.72
(b) Loans _ 8.25 - 8.25 8.25
(c) Trade receivables g 1,031.35 = 1,031.35 1,031.35
(d) Other financlal assets * 507.22 = 507.22 507.22
{e) Investments 971.49 = 12 745.17 13.716.66 13.716.66 |
Sub-Total 971.49 2,026.54 12.745.17 15.743.20 15,743.20
Financial liabilites
(a) Borrowings = 3,766.49 - 3,766.49 3,766.49
(b) Lease Liabllities . 17,778.80 = 17,778.80 17,778.80
(c) Trade payables ¥ 5,786.28 + 5,786.28 5.786.28
|{d) other financial Jlabilitles = 3,934.20 - 3,934.20 3.934.20
Sub-Total - 31,265.77 - 31.265.77 31,265.77

43.1(a) Fair value hlerarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carrled at falr value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:
Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (l.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 2): Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market

data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents falr value hierarchy of assets and llabliities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at March 31, 2024:

2 in lakhs
March 21, 2024
Particulars Lovel 1 !.e‘,".;! 2 Leval 3 e
Financial Assets :
Investments 052.19
Financial Liabilities ¢ il
T in lakhs
March 31, 2023
Particulars Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Tovel 3 Total
Financial Assets ¢
Tnvestments . 2 971.49 a71.49

Financial Liabilities :

il
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Valuation technique used to determine fair value

a) Investments carrled at falr value are generally based on market price quotations. However in cases where quoted prices are not available the
management has involved valuation experts to determine the falr value of the investments. Different valuation techniques have been used by the
valuers for different investments. These investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for long term strateglc
purpose. The Company has chasen to designate this investments in equity instruments at FVTOCT since, it provides a more meaningful presentation.
Cost of certain investments in equity instruments have been considered as ar approprlate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair
value measuements and cost represents the best estimate of falr vaiue within that range

b) Falr value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows. The carrying amounts of other borrowings with floating rate of
interest are considered to be close to the falr value

) The carrying amounts of remaining financial assets and llabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values.

d) Management uses its best judgement In estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any
estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financlal Instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarlly indicative of the
amounts that the Company could have realised or paid In sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, Fair value of flnanclal instruments
subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

43.2 Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to

= maximize the shareholder value;

« safeguard Its abllity to continue as & going concern;

= maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capltal; &
« ensure Compllance with covenants related to its credit facllities.

The Board of Directars has the primary responsibility to maintain 3 strong capltal base and reduce the cost of capital through prudent management of
deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in the financial markets so as to malntaln and sustain future development of the business.

For the purpose of the Company’s capltal management, equity capltal Includes Issued equity capltal, share application money pending allotment and all

other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The Company manages its capltal structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditlons, regulatory framework, The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The net debt - equity ratio of the Company is as follows ;-

% in lakhs
As at As at
oucuiars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

Long term debt (including Current and Non Current Borrowings) - 3,766.49
Cash and cash equlvalents (net of bank overdraft) * - 479.72
Net Debt (A) - 3,286.77
Equity (B) . 39,841.89 34,511.07
Net dabt to equilty ratio {A/B) - 0.10

* There Is no outstanding debt obligation as at March 31, 2024

44. FI 1 risk g t
The Company’s principal financtal llabilitles comprise loans and borrowings denominated in Indlan rupees, trade payables, Security Deposit from Tenants
and other payables. The main purpose of these financlal [labllitles is to finance the Company's capltal Investments and operations.

The Company's princlpal financlal assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are generated from Its operations and
other financlal assets measured at amortised cost.

The Company'’s business activities expose It to a variety of finandial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk.

Moacuremant Management

Risk

Cash and cash equivalents, trade
Credit Risk recelvables, financial assets Agelng analysls |Diversification of bank deposits.
measured at amortlised cost

Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other llabilities R°";:ge2:rs"°w Availabillty of committed credit lines and borrowing facilities
Flnancial assets measured at falr Sensitivity i fai
Market risk - Price value analysis Monitoring of changes in fair value.

Long-term borrowings at fixed Sensitlvi
Market risk - interest rate Interest rates which are reset as per ens' s‘:‘sty Moniltoring of interest rates. Interest rates are unhedged
economic condition analy
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44.1 RIsk management framework

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company evaluates and rmanages the uncertaintles in the Company. They conduct meetings at
regular intervals involving other high level officers of the company and provides updates to the Board.

The management of financial risks by the Company is summarlzed below:-

44.1.1 Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial Instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company Is exposed to credit risk as a result of the risk of counterparties defaulting on their obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk
primarily relates to investments, accounts recelvable and cash and cash equlivalents. The Company monitors and limits its exposure to credit risk on a
continuous basis, The Company’s credit risk associated with accounts receivable is primarlly related to lease rental and maintenance dues of let-out
shops. To manage this, the Company perlodically reviews the finanial reliability of Its customers, taking into account the financial condition, current
economic trends and analysis of historical bad debts and agelng of accounts receivables.

MaxImum exposure to credit risk of the Company has been listed below:

€ in lakhs
As at As st
Barticulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents 2,894.07 479.72
Trade recelvables 804,80 1,031.35
Loans 7.41 8.25
Other financial assets £97.97 507.22
Total . 4,404.25 2,026.54

1. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are subject to insigniflcant credit risk as major portion of It are secured and considering the volume and nature of trade recelvables,
management belleves that trade receivables do not have significant credit risk if it Is outstanding for a perlod more than 6 months date they fall due.
However, trade receivables are stated after an allowance for credit loss as per the expected credit loss mode!.

II1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents comprise cash in hand and deposlts which are readily convertible to cash, These are subject to Insignificant risk of change in
value or credit risk. All banks are of good credit worthiness.

XII. Loans To employees
The Company has given loans to its Employees. The risk of default In respect of these loans Is consldered negligible.

IV. Other financial assets
The Company has given advances to various other parties. Management believes that these are current in nature and are collectible in full. The risk of
default In respect of these advances is considered Insignificant.

44.,1,2 Liquidity risk

The Company Is exposed to liquidity risk related to Its abllity to fund its obligations as they become due. The Company menltors and manages its
liquldity risk to ensure access to sufficlent funds to meet operational and financial requirements. The Company has access to credit facilities and
monitors cash balances dally. In relation to the Company's liquidity risk, the Company's policy is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficlent liquidity to meet its llabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions as they fall due while minimizing finance costs, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The following table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for Its non-derlvative financial llabliities with agreed repayment periods. The
table has been drawn based on the undiscounted cashflows of financlal liabilities based on the earllest date on which the Company can be required to
pay. The table include both interest and princlpal cashflows. The contractual maturity Is based on the earllest date on which the Company may be
required to pay.

A) Financial arrangements
The Company has access to following undrawn borrowling facilltles at the end of the year:-

% in lakhs
Ag at As at
Particulars mprch 31, 2024 | Maech 31,2023 |
Undraven Working Capital loan faciiities 3.000.00 3,100.00

B) Expected maturlty for non-derivative financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company's financlal liabilitles Into relevant maturity grouplngs based on thelr contractual maturities, The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual discounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal thelr carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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S € in lakhs
Particul Less than 1 "
culars year 1-5 years 5+ years Total Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2024 T
a) Borrowings . 3 - - =
b) Lease Liability 21.24 3.78 18.059.63 18,084.65 18,084.65
c) Trade payables 5,050.28 B - 5,050.28 5,050.28
d) Other financial liabllitles 3,317.49 1,375.42 71.84 4,764.75 4,764.75
T in lakhs
Particutars Les:’;::n 1 1-5 years 5+ years Total Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2023
3) Borrowings 3,458.12 308.37 - 3,766.49 3,766.49
b) Lease Llability 18.20 25.02 17,735.58 17,778.80 17,778.80
c) Trade payables 5,786.28 - 5,786.28 5,786.28
d) Other financlai liabllitles 1,910.84 1,789.88 233.48 3,934.20 3,934.20

44.1.3 Market Risk
Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

1) Foreign currency risk
The Company deals with foreign trade payables and Is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk associated with exchange rate movement.

The company's exposure to farelgn currency rlsk at the end of the year expressed in INR (foreign currency amount multiplied by closing rate), are as
follows: -

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Foreign Currency Risk (USD) Amount in R Amount in Amount in
= Amount in Local =
Foreign Currency Foreign Local
Currency Currency Currency
Financial liabilities
Trade Payahle Nil Nl Nif Nil

IV) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company manages its interest risk exposure relating to the financlal instrument classified at amortised cost by using the market interest rate as the
effective interest rate and the changes in the assets liabilities Is accounted for as interest income/expenses with respect to financial assets/financial
llabllities respectively. The Company Is exposed to interest rate risk predominantiy in borrowings

€ in lakhs
| Impact on profit after tax
Farticulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest rate - Increase by 50 basis points [6.65) {20.39)
Interest rate - decrease by 50 basis points 665 20.39

iii) Other price risk

The Company’s exposure to equity securlties price risk arises from investrnents held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet at fair value
through OCI. To manage its price risk arising from investments In equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfollo. In general, these Investments
are not held for trading purposes,

2 in Inkhs
Incr tal change in value
Bacticniars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Increase by 5% 47.66 48.57
|Decrease by 5% (47.66) (48.57)

45. Fair value measurements

45.1 Fair value of financial asset that are measured at fair value on a recurting basis

The Company has made investments In unlisted entity and has measured the same on fair value through other comprehensive Income. The fair value of
such Investment Is recorded in Note no. 5 to financial statements.

45.2 Fair value disclosures of the financial assets and liabllities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are
required ):-

The disclosure relating to the fair values of financlal assets and financial liabilities that are measured at other than fair value are not required as the
management of the Company has determined the carrying amount of such financlal assets and liabllities appoximates the fair value,
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46(a). Ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current Previous 9% change Reason for Variance
Year Year _ - ==
Current Ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities .81 0.43 87% Repayment of Company's borrowing has resulted in
reduction of Current Liability improving Current Ratio
position.
Debt-Equity Ratio (in Tota! Debt (Non-current Shareholder's - 0.11 -100% The Company has fully repaid debt of Rs.3,770.29
times) borrowings + Current Equity lakhs during the year.
Borrowings)
Debt Service Coverage Net profit after taxes + Interest 1.60 1.59 1%
Ratio (in times) Exception items + Non-cash  payments+ Long-
operating expenses term Principal
{depreciation) + Finance costs Repayment+
+ Other adjustments (loss on  Lease Payments
sale of PPE)
Return on Equity:Ratlo Net Profit after taxes Average, 14.4% 11.8% 22% The increase in revenue has contributed to a better
(in %) Shareholder's Net Profit after taxes in the current year.
Equity
Inventory Tumover Cost af Goods Sold Average 0.39 0.29 317% Cost of goods sold has reduced on account of sale of
Ratlo (in times) Inventory only one propety during the year.
Trade Recelvable Total Revenue from Average Trade 14.45 14.57 1%
Tumowver Ratio (in Operatlons - Sale of Product - Receivables
times) Car Parking recelpts
Trade Payables Total expenses -Depreciation - Average Trade  0.76 0.73 3%
Turnover Ratio (In Finance Cost - Employee Payable
times) Benefit Expense - Loss on
sale/discard of Asset - CSR
Expenditure - Bank Charges -
Advance/ Bad Debt wrltten off
Net Capital Turnover Total Revenue from Warking Capital (7.91) (2.08) 280% Working capltal Is negative but has Increased on
ratlo (in times) Operations account of repayment of borrowlngs and long due
trade payables, The increase in Working Capltal
despite an increase in Revenue from Operation has
affected the Net Capital Turnover ratio.
Net Profit Ratio (in %) Net Profit after taxes ‘Total Revenue 39% 28% 41% Higher revenue and lower cost has contributed to
from Operations improved Net Profit ratio,
Return on Capital Earnings before:interest and  Capital employed 21% 18% 19% The Company's Revenue from Operatlons has
Employed (in %) taxes (Loss before taxes + (Tanglble Net increase compared to previous period without any
FInance costs) worth + Non major change in Capltal Employed.
Current
borrowings +
Current
Borrowings +
Deferred Laibliity) - =
Return on Investment Galin/(Loss) recognised during Average of 9% N/A N/A The company did not earn Investment income from
(in %) the year opening and investment In AIFs during the last year hence the
closing value of ratio was not computed.
investments

46 (b). Other Statutory Information

(a) The Company does not have any Benaml property, where any proceeding has been initlated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,
(b) The Company does not have any transactions with companles struck off.
(c) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(d) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(e) The Company does not have any such transaction which Is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income durlng the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

() The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entlty(les), including foreign entities (Intermediarles) with the understanding

that the Intermedlary shalf:
a. directly or Indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entltles identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(g) The Company has provided guarantees to following :-
1) To ICICI Bank through Letter of Comfort dated 30-April-21 amounting to Rs.11,500 lakhs on behalf of Gulltfree Industries Limited (March 31, 2023: Rs.11,500 iakhs).
ii) To ICICI Bank through Letter of Comfort dated 29-September-22 amounting to Rs. 11,875 lakhs on behalf of Guilltfree Industrles Limited (March 31, 2023: Rs.11,875

lakhs).
1Il) To RBL Bank through Letter of Comfort dated 21-December-23 amounting to Rs. 5,000 lakhs on behalf of Apricot Foods Pvt. Ltd. as on March 31, 2024 (March 31,

2023: Rs. NIL).

(h) The Company have not recelved any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwlise) that the Company shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaties) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries.
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47. Related party transactions
1] Pacent entittan

[ wentires Lisneit

March 31, 2024 [#srch 31,2023
L - N Tt

{6} Babaidissies, suintistes. joint
Name

I Type Place ot March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Incorporation
Matramark Geoaq Commodities Prvate Subsidiary “s0aia 100.00% 10000% |
emuited
RPSG Unique Advisary LiP Subsidiary tndie 96.00% 55 CO%
ResG Venturas Aavisory LiP Joint Venture india 96 CO% 95.00%
RPSG ventures Fupd: [ Joint Venturg indla S0 00% 50 005
APSG CapAl Vertures Fund- LI Jnint Vanture 32,48% 06.6/%
{e) Saiicne Subidiacies S S
Hame Type Place of
Guilk=u [ndlsties Lymitea Felitor Subbinery lisdls
Foncet Toars Sromle Llmtet Fellow Subsidiary I
Ry Mansaement Persennal IKHR] and = i
Hansqing Qlryttar a9 CEQ) ]
E— L LR
Patcil e et 33,2070 1 -
Shast Tenm Enoloves Bepeli l:'U J’ |
Fast Enoliterman Beafi - 3,‘ R
(otal = :n a8 |
e Companies under e coninal [ehere ¢ enist)
Rame Place of
!ncorwvalmn
[Ty i —— Tindia
VCESE Limaad Indla
Iwmw'd\ Mutinpeciatny Komphul ndla
stmindd
PO Beuaurted Pt L0 Tndla
istna Enangy Lrntsd Indis
Indin

| Bhnentprue $lertriciy Srrors |

A1} Betaity of Lansachiony far the year ended March 31, 2014 botween tha Company and related parties and sislus of Dulblanding Balantess == 2 in lakhs
—— ) ; Parent Company “"“"'“";’n"k‘::l' Sl subsldiary company Joint Vanture Fallow subskdiary
whure 4 I B -
March 33023 | March 31, 2024 | March 33, 2023 | March 31. 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 |  March 31, 2024 | Mnrch 31,2023
Advance pald for share subscription - - - - 20.00 70,00 . . -
Aliotment of shares - - = - (20.00) {70.00) N L L -
mazde in unlts of
s¢itog prrdd . : - . = . 2,461.67 3,103,33 . .
aof . .
Irvematrreet Fimfs walte y - = (172.21)
Saleof Investments . . . 899.99 = - 1,841.57 .
Financlal Busrantae Incars 361.32
Investment sgainst Capiial 5 . r q 46,40 1,336.00 = . =
|Triterest on Sceurity Depoalt - - 1.43 1,38 . . . -
Inenma agatnsl Investment n - . - N 1,107.83 "
Aftermate Investment Funds -
\Incame from saln/services . B 28047 873,28 = - . . C
[Distrimuiion of Intame . - i 0 - 8.46 . .
mies Ineurred - - 3,13844 2,923.18 - - . . .
User fees P - 1.464.10 1,464.10 . - - .
Povier and Fuel . B 119712 3,1B1.3% * - . " >,
Emoloves flanafit expanty ' 19461 19328 = . ] -
Gurst boure chames ¢ - 004 | 051 . . - .
Mg B PngaIncn exceme 75.00 0.co
Meceiihe st neaArEe . - 7.2? 880 - = - - - .
Protesslonal Fees . . 200,00 125.00 - - v =
Recovery of ex - . (211.24) (110.94) - B ’ -
Emoloves Bantﬁt expense - - 143.50) (27.56) - - B o .
Power and Fual - . (74.38) (60,00} ™ - F ' -
Rates and Taxes . . {88.31) - 7 . . . . .
Miscoflaneous exoenses . - (5.05) 131.3C) - - . . . -
[Baiance a8 at veas and; -
abt - - 74,52 39,93 1,775.92 1,729.52 761 - 31383 .
. . 4,775.52 5,506.46 . * . . e .
= 300 00 200.00 ~ . ’ . . d

{g) Transactlons during the year ends

IMame oF thn Rolsted Marky

CESE Timitng

BE5SG Capital Ventures Fund 10

Uvestment in
Altemate

- . Amaunt in Ry, Iﬂhh!.
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
(R 1.484.19
1,41 136
L 19}' CH
194,61
0,04,
(a782) (12,68)
350) 360
2,191.67] 1,933.33
tncome egainst 0,97 .

2023 with reisied partias exceeding 10% of Revenue from Operations
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48. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The expenditure incurred (Refer

note 33) during the year on said activities are as specified in schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

“For the year

For the year

(1
(iv)
(v)

Closing balance at the end of the year [(I) - (iI)]
Total of prevlous years shortfall

Reason for shortfall

Not applicable

Sl. Particulars ended March 31, |ended March 31,
2024 2023

(1) jAmount required to be spent by the company during the year 56.76 40.61

(ii) |Amount of expenditure incurred
- Construction/ acquisition of any asset e =
- On purposes other than (i) above 24.58 41.15
Total Amount of expenditure incurred (a + b) . 2

32.18%

Not applicable

(vi) |Nature of CSR activities
Refer Note below | Refer Note below
(vi) |Detalls of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the Nil Nil
company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard
(vii) |Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a
contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should be Nl Nil

shown separately

*Note: The unspent CSR liability of Rs.32.18 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: NIL) have been transferred to earmarked
speclal bank account within 30 days from the end of Financial year on April 24, 2024 In compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Note: Nature of CSR activities

The details of the amount spent by the Company as stated below are towards activities covered under Schedule-VII to the Companies
Act, 2013:

i) Promoting education;

i) Improving health conditions and livelihood prospect of nearby slum adjacent to mall;

49. The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has
been notified by the Central Government In the Official Gazette on 29th September, 2020. The draft rules have been released by the
Union Ministry of Labour and Employment on November 13, 2020 and suggestions have been invited from stakeholders which are
under consideration by the Ministry. The impact of the change willl be assessed and accounted for by the Company in the period in
which sald rules are notified for Implementation.

50. Subsequent events
The Board of directors at its meeting held on May 17, 2024 has approved the flnancial statements as at and for the year ended March
31, 2024.

As per our report of even date attached.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 117366W/W-100018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Quest Properties India Limited
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